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Hearing commenced at 4.16 pm 
 
ANDRICH, MR CHRIS 
Acting Chief Executive Officer, VenuesWest, 
sworn and examined: 
 
STEWART, MR PETER 
Director, Corporate Services, VenuesWest, 
sworn and examined:  
 
 
The CHAIR: On behalf of the committee, I welcome you both to this afternoon’s meeting. Before 
we begin, I am required to ask you to take either an oath or an affirmation. 
[Witnesses took the oath.] 
The CHAIR: You will have signed a document entitled “Information for Witnesses”. Have you 
read and understood this document? 
The Witnesses: Yes. 
The CHAIR: The proceedings this afternoon are being recorded by Hansard. A transcript of your 
evidence will be provided to you. To assist the committee and Hansard, please quote the full title of 
any document that you may refer to during the course of the hearing. Please be aware of the 
microphones and try to speak directly into them. I remind you that your transcript will become a 
matter for the public record. If for some reason you wish to make a confidential statement during 
today’s proceedings, you should request that your evidence be taken in closed session. If the 
committee grants your request, any public and media in attendance will be excluded from the 
hearing. Please note that the uncorrected transcript should not be published or disclosed. This 
prohibition does not, however, prevent you from discussing your public evidence generally once 
you leave the hearing.  
Government agencies and departments have an important role and duty in assisting Parliament to 
scrutinise the budget papers on behalf of the people of Western Australia and we value your 
assistance this afternoon. 
Members, I offer the usual suggestion that quoting line items, page numbers, programs et cetera in 
preface to your questions would be most useful. 
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Do you manage the Perth Arena? Does the Perth Arena come 
under you? 
Mr Andrich: Yes. We have client status of Perth Arena.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: We make reference to it on page 517, which talks about the 
provision of community facilities and services. I do not know whether it falls in there. It is about the 
contract being awarded to AEG Ogden to manage Perth Arena. Are you aware of that contract? 
Mr Andrich: At the moment we have awarded preferred tenderer status to AEG Ogden. We are yet 
to finalise a contract with it but at the moment it is the preferred tenderer.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: By what means did it become the preferred respondent, which is 
the correct language? 
Mr Andrich: You are correct. There was a public tender process. We also went through an in-
house public sector comparator.  
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Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: When will the announcement be made of the successful bidder to 
manage Perth Arena? What sort of time frame are you looking at? 
Mr Andrich: When the chief executive officer returns from leave, he and the chairman of the 
Western Australian Sports Centre Trust will either go to Brisbane or they will fly the person here 
and they will begin negotiations. I am not entirely sure when.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Is AEG Ogden not a Perth-based company? 
Mr Andrich: It is a worldwide venue management company.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Where is it based? 
Mr Andrich: Its Australian base is in Brisbane.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Does it have a presence here without this contract?  
Mr Andrich: It does. It currently manages the Perth Theatre Trust’s assets.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Given that somebody has been given a preferred respondent status, 
what is the chance of them being knocked off from that preferred respondent status? It is almost like 
saying, “You are the anointed one”, to be fair. 
Mr Andrich: I am not entirely sure I can comment on that but I imagine that if we cannot reach — 
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: If you cannot agree on the terms and conditions. 
Mr Andrich: That is right. If we cannot reach agreement on the terms and conditions, the next 
stage is we would have to go down.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Without an understanding of the terms and conditions or how they 
compare with other proponents, on what basis did AEG Ogden become the preferred respondent?  
Mr Andrich: There was an evaluation panel and it was considered the preferred respondent. 
[4.21 pm] 
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: If the terms and conditions were not actually put on the table or 
were not compared with the other bidders, on what basis did they become the preferred proponent? 
Mr Andrich: There was a set of criteria that everyone was marked against. If you would like us to 
provide that information, I think we can do that. 
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Yes, alright; we can take that on notice. But do you understand 
where I am coming from? The terms and conditions were not included as a part of the comparator, 
but it would seem to me that the terms and conditions are really fundamental to the way that the 
contract is going to be costed and the way that the contract is going to run, and so on and so forth. 
Are you telling me that the terms and conditions were not actually used as the basis for determining 
the comparator? 
Mr Andrich: No; I am — 
Mr Stewart: My understanding is that because of the size of the contract, the Department of 
Treasury and Finance were part of the evaluation panel, and the state government standard terms 
and conditions for contracting of that sort were included in the tender documents that went out to all 
the parties. 
The CHAIR: Just before we proceed, we need to give a number to the criteria that I believe you are 
going to provide as additional information. 
[Supplementary Information No B1.]  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: What is the total value of the contract; what is it anticipated to be; 
and what is the life of the contract? 
Mr Andrich: We cannot answer that. 
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Mr Stewart: It has been something that has been very secret right throughout the process. Because 
VenuesWest, itself, put in a comparator bid and we were involved in that comparator bid, neither 
Chris nor I have been involved in the evaluation or seen the other documentation. It is not 
something we are privy to. At the moment it is still—Parliament has announced that AEG Ogden is 
the preferred respondent; I have not seen any other details from that, and it is still quite a restricted 
document. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: I am just trying to get an understanding of your budget papers for this year. 
Last year you had two service summaries. Service summary 1 seems to be the provision of elite 
facilities; that does not seem to have changed. But service summary 2 seems to have been split 
exactly in half, and I am trying to get an understanding of what will be provided under service 
summary 2 and what will be provided under service summary 3. Are you able to give us a brief 
explanation about that? Is it functions within the facilities, or that different facilities, like Perth 
Arena, get classified as service summary 3 and Arena Joondalup, comes under service summary 2? 
Or is it within each of those facilities there will be elements of them that are service summary 2 and 
service summary 3? 
Mr Andrich: That is correct. Basically, under each facility that we manage there are elements that 
are elite, there are elements that are community service, and there are elements that we do 
commercially to offset the cost of elite sport, which is highly expensive. Did you want to talk about 
the split of how we come to that? 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Yes, if you could, because if I can get a bit of an understanding, that would 
probably help us inform some of the figures, because I am also intrigued as to how summaries 2 
and 3 seem to be just exactly identical at this stage, so how that is arrived at. 
Mr Stewart: That is exactly reflective of the resource and the effort that VenuesWest puts into that. 
You will see that there is a revenue component under service 3 that is better, or close to, the actual 
cost of delivering the service. We recognise that, for a commercial activity, it has either got to meet 
or exceed 100 per cent of the cost of delivering that service. We try to make it exceed, because that 
then contributes to our cost in delivering on elite sport, which is heavily subsided. The way the 
effort calculation has been made—this is the first year we are reporting against these different 
services—is with some historical calculations about the effort we put into delivering elite sport, 
which works out at somewhere between 37 per cent and 40 per cent of the resource for 
VenuesWest. The other two—commercial and community—we put about half each of the balance 
into operating those activities. You can see that costs and the FTE split will be equivalent for those, 
but the revenue figures will be different—obviously we make more in our commercial activity than 
we do in our community activity availability. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: What do you consider a commercial activity versus a community facility 
service? 
Mr Andrich: Commercial activity is where we will make a profit on the activity, so, for example, 
all our events that we do—we have had a fair few of them in the past 12 months—are what we 
consider commercial.  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Are things such as gymnasiums considered commercial or community? 
Mr Andrich: Commercial, but there are elements of community groups using them. For example, 
at Arena Joondalup we have the Vietnam Veterans Association of Australia utilising the gym, so 
that is one of our community aspects. But by and large we are competing with commercial 
operators so we price ourselves accordingly. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: What about the swimming pools, for instance, at Challenge and — 
Mr Andrich: That is mostly community usage. There is very little commercial opportunity within 
them. Some of it is also, obviously, elite, such as the Western Australian Institute of Sport; when we 
have national or state meets, that is elite sport.  
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Hon KEN TRAVERS: The efficiency indicator you have there is the ratio of commercial revenue 
compared with total operating expenses, and if you look up above it, your income is above your 
total cost of services. But you are saying your commercial revenue, compared with total operating 
expenses, is 67 per cent. What is the difference between commercial revenue to operating expenses, 
as opposed to cost of service versus expenses? 
Mr Stewart: We are trying to demonstrate the value that we receive to put in against elite and 
community compared with the appropriation that we receive from government. We are trying to 
establish that we do commercial activities and for the percentage of that that funds our elite use we 
are trying to get a better value for each — 
Mr Andrich: Dollar spent. 
[4.30 pm] 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Is there appropriations going towards service summary 3 then?  
Mr Stewart: No, there is none. The whole idea of having a commercial operation is to either be 
100 per cent or better than the cost of the service. You will see that in — 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Would your revenue not be over the cost of the services?  
Mr Stewart: It is the total cost of service for the agency, not just the cost of service for that. We are 
trying to measure the total cost of the agencies to deliver all services and the amount of commercial 
revenue that we put into that. It is more than 100 per cent for that service, but it is not more than 
100 per cent for the whole operating cost of the agency.  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Why would that not be classified as an outcome and key effectiveness 
indicator rather than an efficiency indicator for that service summary?  
Mr Stewart: That is a good question. I do not have — 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: If it is not a measure of the service summary, it is a measure of the overall 
effectiveness of the organisation.  
Mr Stewart: What we are trying to do is measure the amount of funds that we can generate 
ourselves to put towards elite sport. That is what the agency is there to do. It is heavily subsidised 
by appropriation. The more we can make in a commercial nature and put towards that, the better 
and higher value of service we can provide for elite sport.  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: I understand that. I do not disagree with it so long as it is about commercial 
activities. There is always that grey area between commercial as you go into community. As the 
acting CEO knows, that always causes problems, I suspect, at all your venues, but Arena Joondalup 
is one I know well. There is a constant battle between the fees that you charge out to sporting 
groups and the like for their activities.  
Mr Andrich: You are quite correct, yes. There most definitely is a lot of —  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: If it is a straight commercial activity and you are in the commercial market, 
I do not have a problem with that. What I am trying to understand is how will that be divided and 
how will we measure those two in the way in which the budget is now presented?  
Mr Stewart: It is a challenge for us. There is still some work that we need to do to actually measure 
that. This is the first year we have budgeted this way so we have got to go through the process now 
of calculating how we allocate. The resource was a notional rate. You will see that we have gone 
back historically and reallocated our resource historically against that as well. The truth is we will 
not know exactly—until we are acting in that and actually starting to report and collect that 
information—how we are going to go against that. The intention is that our commercial activities 
will very heavily start to subsidise our elite. They do already; it is just how we actually show that 
and report against it.  
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Hon KEN TRAVERS: For the 2009–10 financial year, will you report on the basis of your new 
service summaries or on your old?  
Mr Stewart: We have to report on what was published in the budget papers at the time.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: I refer to the heading on page 520 “Provision of Competitive and Cost 
Effective and State-Owned Assets”. This is what you call the commercial aspect under your trust. 
The surplus under “2009–10 Estimated Actual” is estimated to be $2.5 million. That is a surplus 
which you say is contributing to support elite activity? 
Mr Stewart: That is correct.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: I understand that. If we then go over the page to 522, there is 
“Financial Statements”, “Income Statement” and then “Income” about a third of the way down the 
page. There are three items there. This is revenue you are receiving. Then you say “increased 
depreciation to match forecast asset replacement value ($1.5 million)”. Can you explain where that 
$1.5 million is coming from? 
Mr Stewart: It is increased depreciation recognised by DTF and provided in our budget. We have 
new assets that have come on board—the athletic stadium and the basketball stadium. Because they 
are assets that depreciate, Treasury have increased our appropriation to cover the cost of the 
depreciation of those assets.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: They have given you an appropriation. Are you putting that into a 
separate account so that you can meet asset replacement demands in the future? Is that how you are 
managing that $1.5 million? 
Mr Stewart: The value of the depreciation is recognised by Treasury in the Treasury-held holding 
account, that is correct.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: It is like a restricted cash account? Is that in your balance sheet as 
restricted cash?  
Mr Stewart: No. It is not shown as restricted cash.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: There is no restricted cash in your balance sheet? 
Mr Stewart: No; there is no restricted cash. It is actually a holding account that is held at DTF, so it 
is in Treasury. 
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: It is in Treasury but falls underneath your financial arrangements? 
Mr Stewart: That is correct.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: That is for the assess replacement. Is that $1.5 million in relation to the 
athletic stadium?  
Mr Stewart: That was an increase in this year, 2010–11, for the athletic stadium and the new 
basketball stadium that we have taken on board in this financial year.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: Is there expected to be a similar kind of asset replacement value 
coming through with the Perth facility?  
Mr Andrich: Yes. Perth Arena. 
Mr Stewart: It is a much higher value. If you look at the “Income Statement” on page 523, the 
fourth line down “Depreciation and amortisation” you will see that there is growth in 2011–12 as 
the Perth Arena comes on board. It grows as the value of the asset increases.  
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: That is in a sense going to a perpetual fund in a way, which will build 
up for building new sporting facilities or new facilities down the track? 
Mr Stewart: That fund is designed so that at the end of the useful life of an asset, it should fund the 
replacement of that asset.  
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Hon PHILIP GARDINER: That is encouraging. Thank you.  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: That is the item listed as “Reserves”? Is that what we are talking about on 
524 under “equity”?  
Mr Stewart: No. On page 524 under “Current Assets” and “Non-Current Assets” you will see an 
amount there. It is not restricted cash but it is “Holding account receivables”. That is the amount. 
You will see under the non-current assets—because it is not something we are going to draw down 
in the current year—that is growing quite substantially; $44 million out in 2013–14. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: What is your equity reserves that is listed at the bottom of that balance 
sheet?  
Mr Stewart: In the balance sheet, that is an accumulated or aggregated reserve from year to year. It 
is recognised as the difference between our assets and liabilities, and the movement in that from 
year to year. It will continue to grow. It is actually reflective of the government’s funding of the 
asset into VenuesWest. It is a vesting of the government’s asset into our agency. We are the holder 
of that but the government holds the equity interest, I suppose, in the agency.  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: I am still not sure I fully understand.  
Mr Andrich: Contributed equity, is that the question?  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: No. The contributed equity, I assume, is the money that is sitting there that 
the government puts into the actual physical cost of the new facilities. That is the money the 
government pays out at various times. It is the reserves component of that.  
Mr Stewart: Sorry, I beg your pardon. I was answering a different line. The reserves is actually 
reflective of changes in the valuation of assets; revaluations. Each year there is a revaluation of our 
properties. Landgate valuation services does that. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: If you spend $1 million on something that is now valued at $2 million, 
$1 million of it is held in reserve? 
Mr Stewart: That is correct. Changes in valuation; and liability changes as well. Changes in 
valuation of liabilities.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: How does the Sport Centre Trust interface with the Department of 
Sport and Recreation? 
Mr Andrich: Which page are we referring to?  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: We are not really; it is a general question. I suppose it could be any 
page. What is the relationship between the two? 
Mr Andrich: We work together. We have cross-portfolio meetings to ensure that we work together. 
We are working very closely at the moment with the new state netball centre and the new state 
rugby centre, both on AK Reserve. We have worked closely in the past with AK Reserve. We are 
looking at future projects at Challenge Stadium and obviously Arena Joondalup. We have a good 
working relationship. They are obviously within our portfolio. We will continue to do so in the 
future.  
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: Does the Sport Centre Trust determine what should be the 
priorities in terms of the provision of sporting facilities?  
Mr Andrich: No. I believe that would be the minister’s decision.  
[4.40 pm] 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Just on that one, are you going to be the managers of the state rugby facility 
then? Is that going to be vested in VenuesWest and then you lease it back, like you have got with 
the state basketball centre, to RugbyWA? 
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Mr Andrich: That is still being determined at the moment. At the moment we are the owners of the 
facility. Whether we manage that or not, I am uncertain at this stage. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: My other question goes to the new budget appropriation, and the new 
outcomes and key effectiveness indicators. Can you explain to us what you are actually hoping, on 
page 518, to achieve out of the new measures that you are putting in place? In comparison to the 
measures that you had last year for your efficiency and effectiveness outcomes, the elite user 
satisfaction would appear to be similar to what you had as an effectiveness and efficiency indicator 
last year. Last year it seemed to be broken up. You had Challenge Arena and SpeedDome. Now you 
are doing it as one across the board. Are you trying to look at measuring the same thing as you did 
or is there something more subtle and different in terms of what you are hoping to measure under 
these new efficiency and effectiveness indicators compared to what you were getting last year? 
Mr Andrich: We have obviously amended our structure. Previously we had facility managers at 
each one of those facilities; so at Challenge Stadium there was a Challenge Stadium centre manager 
and at Arena Joondalup there was an Arena Joondalup centre manager — 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Who used to always outperform the Challenge Stadium centre manager, I 
know! 
Mr Andrich: Thank you. Obviously, because we are taking on more facilities, we thought we were 
going to end up having seven or nine managers, and we thought it was not a cost-effective way for 
the government to go forward. So as a result, what we have done is we have changed our structure 
to better reflect the three elements of the business operations and services that we deliver. The 
approval for this structure was given by the Department of Treasury and Finance and supported by 
the Office of the Auditor General in December 2009. In prior years there were only two service 
areas reported on, as you have sort of highlighted, but from 2010–11 onwards we will be reporting 
against the third service provision of competitive and cost-effective state-owned assets. Does that 
answer the question? 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: It does. Internally, is it still the intention of the organisation to monitor at a 
facility level? I understand in terms of global reporting why you would want to do it on a global 
basis of, as an overall organisation, are we meeting and exceeding expectations of the community. 
But I would have thought that even internally you still need to be monitoring at an individual asset 
level to see whether or not one is performing well and one is not, and then I guess use that to 
develop your own responses as well; if one is doing very well, what are you doing well there that 
you could transfer across. 
Mr Andrich: Most definitely. So what we have got at the moment is split ways of reporting as well 
in terms of the financials, so each facility has a cost centre associated with it. As a result, we can 
drill down and get that information to report on. 
Mr Stewart: Also, any of the user satisfaction surveys will have to be done at the venue point. So 
the information will be collated. Sure, it will have an aggregated value, whatever that might be, but 
we will know what numbers have rolled up into that and internally we will know if there is 
dissatisfaction or whatever differences there are across the different venues. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: Is there any way that that information will be able to be publicly available? 
Is it likely that you could include that in your annual report or something like that? While I 
understand what you are doing there, I actually think that ability to measure and identify customer 
satisfaction at each of the different facilities is a pretty important issue in terms of, certainly for 
members of Parliament, to know whether or not that facility is performing well. 
Mr Andrich: Sure. With our customer service satisfaction, we do what is called the CEARM, the 
centre for environmental and recreational management, and we benchmark that across other 
facilities across the whole of Australia. We do have that ability to do both and to drill down to each 
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of the facilities. So we can do that. We can also, as you said—I am not sure that we put it in our 
annual report—section off the financials to represent each of the facilities that are managed. 
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: On page 518, the top dot point in relation to the Crawford report, there 
is a suggestion there that rationalisation as the result of recommendations out of that report—this is 
my interpretation—may lead to possibly some facilities becoming underutilised if there are mergers 
which take place according to the recommendations of the report. Am I reading that correctly or 
not? 
Mr Andrich: Basically, I suppose the Crawford report is obviously a recent document and it has 
had some impact in relation to elite sport and how we move forward with elite sport. In terms of 
how it will affect VenuesWest, we have obviously put that down as a dot point at the moment and 
we will be monitoring it to determine what comes back from the federal and state governments. 
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: What are some of the likely possibilities? 
Mr Andrich: The Crawford report speaks about the way elite sport is and obviously the high cost 
associated with that. I am not entirely sure as to how we are going to move forward and what the 
recommendations will be from our department, so I would only be speculating. 
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: Is there a sense that there could be greater centralisation of elite sports 
by sport? 
Mr Andrich: That is potentially one of the things, and obviously we have got that with the AK 
Reserve, and a lot of our sports are centralised on that location at the moment. 
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: But if is not suggesting that a whole lot of centralisation might occur 
across to the eastern states, is it likely to occur in Western Australia? 
Mr Andrich: I think the proposal in the report talks about, where each of the states have their own 
state institute of sport, some sort of merging or a commonality across those. It is not talking about 
venues as such, but it is talking about the bodies. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: It is about the process of funding and there are about eight different 
variants of how you could fund it, from combining all the institutes of sport into one national body, 
all the way through to the various forms of federations and the like. Can I say that I think if you 
were to try to amalgamate it, it would be as successful as removing the senior school allocation! 
The CHAIR: That is cryptic. It is another inquiry that we are running currently. 
Mr Andrich: Okay, sure. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: That was for my committee members to understand about the success of 
trying to change behaviour of individual people. 
Hon PHILIP GARDINER: I would agree with my colleague’s interpretation, if that was the case. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: In terms of Challenge Stadium, as it stands at the moment, my 
understanding, having looked at some documents that were done as part of the original preparation 
of the business case for the new state netball centre, it indicated that in terms of Challenge Stadium 
there is a problem with the number of concessions, change rooms and toilet facilities, in terms of 
what are the current requirements of the Building Code of Australia, and that when you host major 
events there you often have to bring in temporary facilities to either meet the demands of the hirers 
or—I do not think that you have to formally meet the building code—to meet the demands. Is that 
an issue for the Sports Centre Trust in terms of the facilities in the existing Challenge Stadium? 
Mr Andrich: It is not so much an issue. Obviously, there was an opportunity with the new state 
netball facility to have them as shared-use change rooms and toilet facilities, which would 
obviously reduce our costs for providing that service. I cannot comment on the decision. That was a 
government decision in relation to the changing of that site. 
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[4.50 pm]  
Hon KEN TRAVERS: I am not asking you to comment on the decision about the netball centre; I 
am trying to find out what was the cost. What is the annual cost to the organisation of having to 
provide temporary facilities, and have you measured how much business you lose because you do 
not have sufficient concessions, toilets and change room facilities? 
Mr Andrich: We finished a process with DTF in relation to getting new change room toilet 
facilities at Challenge Stadium. We are going to be spending in excess of $300 000 out of this 
current year’s budget, which will be rolled on to next year, to help us with that. That should reduce 
some of our costs associated with bringing in the toilet facilities for some of our major events. If 
you are asking me what is the actual amount per year, I could not tell you that but I could get that 
information. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: If you could take that as supplementary information. I hope they are mainly 
female toilets that you are building because whenever I have been to Challenge Stadium, the queue 
is always exponential. 
The CHAIR: Nothing new there. 
[Supplementary Information No B2.] 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: I thought I would do the right thing. I do not want more boys’ toilets, 
although I think probably some more boys’ toilets are needed, but an exponential number of female 
toilets are required, from my experience at the venue. 
Mr Andrich: We are certainly working on that and it should be completed in the next few months. 
Hon LJILJANNA RAVLICH: It is good to see the member takes such an interest in this! 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: At this stage, are you involved in any work with nib Stadium in terms of 
the preparation of the business case for that? 
Mr Andrich: I believe that has mostly been done by the Department of Sport and Recreation. We 
have not had any formal conversations with anyone to my knowledge in relation to the potential 
ownership of that. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: I have a couple or more questions but I think that in light of the time and 
the other things that the committee has to do, I am happy to put them on notice. 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: Page 521, the asset investment program, the first paragraph relating to the 
Perth Arena and the second sentence — 

The complex, which is expected to be completed in 2012, will stage a variety of 
entertainment events such as international performing artists, family shows, tennis, 
basketball, netball and production spectaculars. 

That is under “Asset investment program”. Under “Significant Issues Impacting the Agency”, the 
final dot point talks about the fact that touring artists are scaling back their productions, and that is 
happening across the board, it would seem, and that there is now a growing trend towards outdoor 
venues. How are you going to address those concerns in relation to trying to get Perth Arena to 
make money once it is up and running? 
Mr Andrich: We spoke about that part in the “Significant Issues Affecting the Agency” because 
that was obviously mostly referring to Challenge Stadium in respect to that. Challenge Stadium 
caters for a maximum of 5 500 people. The new Perth Arena caters for a maximum seated 14 000 
people or, in a different staging configuration, for up to 15 500 people, again, indoors. My 
understanding, obviously it depends on whoever the venue manager is, is that the economies of 
scale that that presents improves the financial viability of getting some of the acts over and 
improving the bottom line of that facility. 
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Hon LIZ BEHJAT: Are you saying that by the construction and completion of Perth Arena that 
you are able to then buck the trend about people scaling back their productions and moving towards 
outdoor venues? 
Mr Andrich: What I am saying is that if it costs the promoter X number of dollars to bring a show 
over here, obviously the return, if you can sell three times as many tickets, becomes a lot more 
financially viable. 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: I am trying to bring it back to this significant issue which says that the trend of 
touring artists is to scale back their productions and that they are moving towards outdoor concerts. 
Mr Andrich: Which page? 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: It is page 518 under “Significant Issues Impacting the Agency”. 
Mr Andrich: Sorry, I thought we were on page 521. 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: Page 521 spoke in the asset investment program about the wonderful plans we 
have for Perth Arena but 518, the final dot point, talks about the fact that there is a trend by touring 
artists to scale back their productions and that there is a strong growth in the outdoor concert 
market. How do you match those two together? They do not actually seem right. 
Mr Andrich: Perth Arena will not be open until 2012. At the moment, we are still getting over the 
global financial crisis. I believe that we will be in a different economic position at the beginning of 
2012. We had over two million people come through the doors across our venues. In terms of the 
scaling back, obviously promoters are trying to make their productions as profitable as possible. 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: It will be interesting to see how they make money out of it. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: There is a danger of one venue cannibalising another’s business. The 
upgraded ME Stadium and Perth Arena will be in competition. 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: For the sake of a concert, would Perth Arena be classed as an indoor or an 
outdoor venue? 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: It depends on whether the roof is open or closed. 
Mr Andrich: It has the capacity to do both. The majority is indoor. 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: To finish off on that, was it through VenuesWest that the money was put in 
to the Danny Green fight, or was that done purely by the Premier and Cabinet? 
Mr Stewart: Purely through Premier and Cabinet. It was not through our agency. 
Hon LIZ BEHJAT: It was through EventsCorp, was it not? 
Hon KEN TRAVERS: It was not through EventsCorp, which was the bizarre thing. I agree with 
you that it should have been through EventsCorp. If it was not through your agency, that is fine. 
The CHAIR: Thank you, we will conclude. I have to read a few final words to conclude the 
hearing. The committee will be forwarding to you any additional questions that it has to you by the 
minister in writing in the next couple of days, together with the transcript of evidence, which 
includes the questions you have taken on notice. If members have any unasked questions, I ask 
them to supply them to the committee clerk at the close of the meeting. Responses to these 
questions will be requested within 10 working days of the receipt of the questions. Should the 
agency be unable to meet this due date, please advise the committee in writing as soon as possible 
before the due date. The advice is to include specific reasons as to why the due date cannot be met. 
On behalf of the committee, I once again thank you for your attendance this afternoon. 

Hearing concluded at 4.57 pm 


